
DRAFT  2-B 
 

CITY OF NEWARK 
DELAWARE 

 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 
September 30, 2013 

 
 
Those present at 6:00 pm:  
 

Presiding: Mayor Vance A. Funk, III (left after executive session)   
Deputy Mayor Jerry Clifton, District 2 (presided over meeting 
after Mayor Funk’s departure) 

    District 1, Mark Morehead 
    District 3, Doug Tuttle 
    District 4, Margrit Hadden 
    District 5, Luke Chapman 
    District 6, A. Stuart Markham 
 
 Staff Members: City Manager Carol Houck 
    City Secretary Renee Bensley 
    City Solicitor Bruce Herron 
    Deputy City Manager Andrew Haines 
         
      
 
1. Mayor Funk called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. 1. REQUEST FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO 29 DEL. C. 

§10004(B)(2) FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCUSSIONS ON SITE 
ACQUISITIONS FOR PUBLICLY FUNDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

 
MOTION BY MR. CLIFTON, SECONDED BY MR. MARKHAM:  THAT COUNCIL 
ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS SITE ACQUISITIONS FOR 
PUBLICLY FUNDED CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

  
 MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  VOTE:  7 to 0. 
 

Aye – Chapman, Clifton, Funk, Hadden, Markham, Morehead, Tuttle. 
Nay – 0. 

 
 Council entered into Executive Session at 6:01 p.m. and returned to the table at 
6:40 p.m.  Deputy Mayor Clifton advised that no action was necessary by Council. 
 
3. 2.  SETTING SPECIAL ELECTION DATE FOR MAYORAL VACANCY   
 
 Mr. Clifton stated that as of today there is a mayoral vacancy and that Council 
needs to set a date for a special election. By Code, the City is required to hold the 
election no less than 30 days and no more than 60 days from the date of the vacancy. 
Tuesday, November 26, 2013 would be 57 days after the vacancy occurred. 
 
 Ms. Bensley stated that November 26 would be the latest Tuesday on which the 
election could occur. The Code states that a special election should be held in as close 
a manner to a regular election as possible, which has been interpreted to include the 
day of the week. This date also allows for the election before the Thanksgiving holiday. 
 
 The Chair opened the floor to questions from Council. There were no questions 
from Council. 
 

MOTION BY MR. MARKHAM, SECONDED BY MR. MOREHEAD:  THAT 
COUNCIL SET THE SPECIAL ELECTION DATE FOR TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 
26, 2013. 



MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  VOTE:  6 to 0. 
 
Aye – Chapman, Clifton, Hadden, Markham, Morehead, Tuttle. 
Nay – 0. 

 
4. 3.  SETTING DEADLINE FOR NOMINATING PETITIONS FOR SPECIAL 

ELECTION 
 
 Mr. Clifton stated that traditionally the deadline for submitting nominating 
petitions has been approximately 30 days before an election. Ms. Bensley stated that in 
the past the filing deadline has been 29 days prior to an election. There was a charter 
change in 2013 that changed the filing deadline to approximately 60 days prior to the 
election. However, with the abbreviated timeframe of the special election, the City is 
unable to comply with that charter provision, so the recommendation before Council is 
to set the deadline as the traditional 29 days before the election that it was prior to the 
2013 charter change. Mr. Clifton stated that would be Monday, October 28, 2013, and 
Ms. Bensley confirmed that. 
 
 The Chair opened the floor to questions from Council. 
 
 Mr. Morehead asked if there were any legal issues with being unable to comply 
with the filing deadline charter provision. Mr. Herron stated that the filing deadline and 
the timeframe within which the election must be held are two contradictory charter 
provisions and that it is impossible to comply with both. This was the only logical 
solution to the conflicting provisions. Mr. Morehead asked if this could be a basis for the 
election to be challenged. Mr. Herron stated that anything could be challenged, but that 
he believed a challenge would not be successful. Ms. Bensley stated that the City was 
in a different position than many other jurisdictions would be in that for a state special 
election, political parties would nominate and appoint a candidate to the ballot and there 
would not be an open petitioning period. However, since the City’s elections are 
nonpartisan, there is no such mechanism. Since the aim is to set up the election in the 
closest manner to a regular election as possible, that would include a nominating period 
for petitions to be filed. Since the election date set is not even 60 days away, there is no 
way the deadline could be complied with as written. Mr. Markham stated that the 
election is widely known to be occurring and that the 29 days would be plenty of time for 
petitions to be submitted. Mr. Morehead agreed, but he wanted to ensure that the 
election would not have to be redone due to a challenge. 
 

MOTION BY MR. MARKHAM, SECONDED BY MR. MOREHEAD:  THAT 
COUNCIL SET THE DEADLINE FOR NOMINATING PETITIONS TO BE 
SUBMITTED FOR THE SPECIAL ELECTION ON MONDAY, OCTOBER 28, 
2013. 

 
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  VOTE:  6 to 0. 
 
Aye – Chapman, Clifton, Hadden, Markham, Morehead, Tuttle. 
Nay – 0. 

 
5. 4.  SETTING ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING DATE AFTER SPECIAL 

ELECTION 
 
 Mr. Clifton stated that the organizational meeting would need to be set for seven 
days after the special election. Ms. Bensley stated that the state requires a minimum of 
seven days between an election and the swearing in of the newly elected official in 
order to provide the required appeals period. This would make Tuesday, December 3, 
2013, the earliest date possible for the organizational meeting.  

 
Mr. Markham stated that the date is set by Code and that the meeting typically 

takes place at 7:00 p.m. Ms. Bensley stated that this meeting would need to take place 
earlier than 7:00 p.m. because there is a Planning Commission meeting scheduled for 
that evening. Mr. Chapman requested that the meeting take place at 6:30 p.m.  

 



MOTION BY MR. MARKHAM, SECONDED BY MR. MOREHEAD:  THAT 
COUNCIL SET THE ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING FOR TUESDAY, 
DECEMBER 3, 2013 AT 6:30 P.M. 
 
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  VOTE:  6 to 0. 
 
Aye – Chapman, Clifton, Hadden, Markham, Morehead, Tuttle. 
Nay – 0. 

 
6. 5.  DISCUSSION REGARDING CANCELING COUNCIL MEETING 

IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING SPECIAL ELECTION. 
 
 Mr. Clifton stated that Council traditionally has canceled the meeting preceding 
an election for two reasons: to allow sitting members who are running time to campaign 
before the election and to preclude using the public body for grandstanding by 
candidates immediately before the election. Mr. Chapman asked for clarity on which 
meeting would be canceled. Mr. Clifton stated the second meeting in November would 
be canceled and Council would be fulfilling its requirement to meet once a month. 
 
 Mr. Morehead asked if there were any upcoming issues that would be before 
Council that would be impacted by the cancellation. Ms. Houck stated that it would 
impact the budget and there would be one less meeting in which the budget would be 
considered. Prior to the need for the special election, staff had planned on having that 
time, but would be ok and would make adjustments if the meeting were canceled. Ms. 
Bensley stated that regarding upcoming developments, anything that would be up for a 
vote by that point in time would have had to be on the October Planning Commission 
agenda. The only development that would have qualified on that agenda has been 
pulled. There are several developments on the November Planning Commission 
agenda, however, due to the notification requirements, those plans would not be able to 
be presented before Council until the first meeting in December.  
 
 Mr. Chapman asked how far in advance of the meeting would the decision about 
cancellation need to be made. Ms. Bensley stated that ideally she would like to be able 
to publish the cancellation of the meeting in the newspaper in advance of when the 
meeting was supposed to take place. As long as a decision about the meeting in 
question is cancelled by the first meeting in November, that would be enough time. Mr. 
Chapman stated that deferring the decision may be worth considering. Mr. Clifton stated 
that he had previous experience with the issue of candidates grandstanding the meeting 
before an election during the open public comment period.  
 
 Mr. Markham asked if another meeting could be scheduled if it was determined 
to be needed. Ms. Bensley stated that was correct.  
 

MOTION BY MR. CHAPMAN, SECONDED BY MR. TUTTLE:  THAT COUNCIL 
CANCEL THE COUNCIL MEETING IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE 
SPECIAL ELECTION WHICH WAS SCHEDULED TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, 
NOVEMBER 25, 2013. 
 
MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY.  VOTE:  6 to 0. 
 
Aye – Chapman, Clifton, Hadden, Markham, Morehead, Tuttle. 
Nay – 0. 

 
7. Deputy Mayor Clifton adjourned the Special Council Meeting at 6:53 p.m. and 
stated the Council workshop would be called to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
       Renee K. Bensley 
       City Secretary 


	CITY OF NEWARK
	DELAWARE
	SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
	Presiding: Mayor Vance A. Funk, III (left after executive session)

